
From: Bowland, Luke S (DOT)
To: DOT AVI Aviation Design
Subject: FW: SFY ICAP and Labor Rate Approval and Agreement
Date: Tuesday, June 30, 2020 7:25:55 AM
Attachments: SFY21 ICAP LR agreement.pdf

SFY21 ICAP LR approval letter.pdf

FYI
 
Luke Bowland, P.E.
State of Alaska DOT&PF, Central Region Aviation Design Section 
PO Box 196900, Anchorage, Alaska  99519
( 907.269.0619
 

From: Linnell, John R (DOT) <john.linnell@alaska.gov> 
Sent: Monday, June 29, 2020 2:51 PM
To: Amundsen, James (DOT) <jim.amundsen@alaska.gov>; Bowland, Luke S (DOT)
<luke.bowland@alaska.gov>; Miyashiro, Eric L (DOT) <eric.miyashiro@alaska.gov>; Ferguson,
Cynthia L (DOT) <cynthia.ferguson@alaska.gov>; Vanderwood, Randy D (DOT)
<randy.vanderwood@alaska.gov>; Yerkes, Michael C (DOT) <mike.yerkes@alaska.gov>
Cc: Schmid, Tom J (DOT) <tom.schmid@alaska.gov>
Subject: FW: SFY ICAP and Labor Rate Approval and Agreement
 
 
 

From: Rotkis, Diana L (DOT) <diana.rotkis@alaska.gov> 
Sent: Monday, June 29, 2020 1:54 PM
To: Linnell, John R (DOT) <john.linnell@alaska.gov>; St Aubin, Joel G (DOT)
<joel.st.aubin@alaska.gov>; Wagner, Charles M (DOT) <charles.wagner@alaska.gov>
Subject: FW: SFY ICAP and Labor Rate Approval and Agreement
 
For your staff’s info. 
 

Diana L. Rotkis

Deputy Director, Central Region

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

 
 

From: Jenkins, Julie (FHWA) <Julie.Jenkins@dot.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, June 25, 2020 3:50 PM
To: Pannone, Dom M (GOV) <dom.pannone@alaska.gov>
Cc: MacKinnon, John S (DOT) <john.mackinnon@alaska.gov>; Carpenter, Rob S (DOT)
<rob.carpenter@alaska.gov>; Baines, Roger W (DOT) <roger.baines@alaska.gov>; Zepp, Christina R
(DOT) <christina.zepp@alaska.gov>; Henricksen, Geri D (DOT) <geri.henricksen@alaska.gov>;
Ellenburg, Lee R (DOT) <lee.ellenburg@alaska.gov>; Warden, Kristi Ms. <AAL>
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INDIRECT COST AND LABOR RATE NEGOTIATION 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 


AND THE FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION, ALASKA DIVISION 
 


This agreement is made and entered into by the State of Alaska by and through its Department  
of Transportation (DOT&PF) and the United States Government, by and through its Department 
of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration (FHWA).  The indirect cost rates and labor 
rates contained herein are for use on grants and contracts with the Federal Government to which 
2 CFR 200 applies, subject to the limitations contained in Section III.A of this agreement. The 
rates were negotiated by DOT&PF and FHWA in accordance with the authority contained in  
2 CFR 200, Subpart F, Appendix VII.  
 
Section I:  Indirect Cost Rates 


Type: Fixed Rate with Carry Forward Adjustment  
Effective Period: July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2021  


Approved Rates:  
 


 Federal Highway Projects 4.75% 
 Federal Airport Projects 6.34% 


 Public Facilities 10.36% 
 Other Capital 


Improvement Projects 
2.77% 


Base: Total Direct Costs  
Applicable To: All programs not specifically exempted, limited by law, or otherwise 
not applicable because special operating factors necessitate special indirect cost rates. 


 
Section II:  Labor Rates 


Effective Period: July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2021  
 


Approved Rates:   
   


   


 Regular Premium 
 Base Pay 100% 100% 
 Benefits 45% 38% 


 Insurance 28% 0% 
 Leave Taken 17% 0% 


 Over/Under Variance 2% 2% 
 Total 192% 140% 


 
 Applicable To: All programs not specifically exempted by law 


 
Section III: General 


A. Limitations 
a. The rates contained in this agreement are subject to any statutory  


or administrative limitations and are reimbursable through grant, contract,  
or other agreement only to the extent that funds are available.  Acceptance  
of these rates is predicated on the condition that the information provided  
by the DOT&PF which was used to establish the rates is not later found  
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to be materially incomplete or inaccurate by the Federal Government.   
In such situations the rates will be subject to renegotiation at the discretion  
of the FHWA.   
 


b. Acceptance of the indirect cost rates is also predicated on these conditions:  
(1) only costs incurred by the DOT&PF were included in its indirect cost  
pool as finally accepted: such costs are legal obligations of the DOT&PF,  
and are allowable under the allowable governing cost principles;  
(2) the same costs that have been treated as indirect costs are not claimed  
as direct costs;  
(3) similar types of costs have been accorded consistent accounting treatment; 
(4) the state’s portion of funded projects are not included in the cost pool, and 
(5) when the actual costs for this period are determined, an adjustment will be 
made to the rates for the subsequent State Fiscal Years to compensate for the 
difference between the costs used to establish the fixed rates and actual costs. 


 
B. Accounting Changes 
This agreement is based on the accounting system to be in effect during the agreement 
period. Changes in the method of accounting for costs that affect the amount of 
reimbursement resulting from the use of these rates require prior concurrence of FHWA. 
Such changes include, but are not limited to, changes in the charging of a particular  
type of cost from indirect to direct. Failure to obtain concurrence may result in  
cost disallowances. 


 
C. Use by Other Federal Agencies 
The rates in this Agreement were approved in accordance with the authority in  
2 CFR 200, and should be applied to grants, contracts, and other agreements covered  
by this regulation, subject to any limitations in Section III.A above.  Copies of this 
document may be provided to other Federal Agencies as a means of notifying them  
of this agreement. 


 
D. Other 
If any Federal contract, grant, or other agreement is reimbursing indirect costs by means 
other than the approved rates in this agreement, DOT&PF shall notify FHWA. 


 
State of Alaska     U. S. Department of Transportation 
DOT&PF      Federal Highway Administration 
 
 
________________________   _____________________________ 
Dom Pannone, Director    Sandra A. Garcia-Aline 
Alaska Department of Transportation   Division Administrator 
And Public Facilities 
 
________________________   _____________________________ 
Date       Date 
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		SANDRA A GARCIA-ALINE












  


 
 
 
 Alaska Division P.O. Box 21648 
  Juneau, AK  99802-1648 
 June 25, 2020 (907) 586-7418 
  (907) 586-7420 
  www.fhwa.dot.gov/akdiv 
   
  In Reply Refer To: 
Mr. Dom Pannone  ADMS 34-1 
Director 
Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities 
P.O. Box 112500  
Juneau, Alaska  99811-2500   
 
Dear Mr. Pannone: 
 
We have reviewed the Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT&PF)  
labor rate and indirect cost rate proposals for State Fiscal Year 2021 submitted with your 
December 31, 2019 letter.  The rates have been reviewed by the DOT&PF Chief of Internal 
Review and found to be compliant with applicable Federal regulations.  We approve the 
DOT&PF calculated rates, not to exceed, for the period of July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 
 
An agreement has been prepared to document the approved indirect cost and labor rates for use 
on Federal projects and is enclosed.  Please sign and return one executed copy to our office. 
 
If there are any questions, please contact Julie Jenkins, Financial Manager, at 907-586-7476. 
 


 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sandra A. Garcia-Aline 
Division Administrator 


 
 


Enclosure:  ICAP Labor Rate Agreement 
 
cc:   John MacKinnon, Commissioner, DOT&PF 
 Rob Carpenter, Deputy Commissioner, DOT&PF  


Roger Baines, Finance Officer, DOT&PF 
Christina Zepp, ICAP Manager, DOT&PF 


 Geri Henricksen, Grants and Projects Chief, DOT&PF 
Lee Ellenburg, Internal Review Chief, DOT&PF 
Kristi Warden, Acting Airports Division Manager, Federal Aviation Administration 


 



http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/akdiv
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<kristi.warden@faa.gov>
Subject: SFY ICAP and Labor Rate Approval and Agreement
 
Attached, please find the approval letter and agreement form for the SFY21 ICAP and Labor Rates. 
We appreciate the time and effort that went into development and are very thankful for the detailed
narrative provided.
 
Julie Jenkins
Financial Manager
FHWA Alaska Division
907-586-7476

mailto:kristi.warden@faa.gov

